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August 20, 2009
Michael K. McGovern, Town Manager

TOWN OF CAPE ELIZABETH

320 Ocean House Road

P.O. Box 6260

Cape Elizabeth, ME  04107
RE:
Leighton Farms Subdivision
Dear Mike:

You've asked for my opinion in regard to a situation at Town owned property near the Leighton Farm Road.  Specifically, the Town acquired the fee interest title to property at such location by warranty deed of Wyley Enterprises, LLC in connection with its subdivision development known as Leighton Farms Subdivision.  A copy of that deed is enclosed.  While it is a conveyance to the Town, the second paragraph of the deed states that the covenants are for the benefit of the remaining land of the grantor known as Leighton Farms as shown on a plan recorded in the Cumberland County Registry of Deeds in Plan Book 203, Page 410.  The covenants include the restriction limiting use to passive recreational type uses, a restriction such that no buildings, utilities or other significant improvements shall be erected, used or maintained or allowed to stand on the property, except for boardwalks, steps and signs approved for marking by the Cape Elizabeth Greenbelt.  It further provides that the natural tree and shrub growth on the property shall be preserved in its existing condition.

I understand that it has come to your attention that parties named Mr. and Mrs. Philip M. O'Hearn, owning adjoining property to that described above, have entered upon the Town property and made landscaping improvements, including placing thereon a portion of a stone wall.  I don't know if that was done with the knowledge that it was the Town's property or not.


As you stated in your letter of May 26th to the O'Hearns, the Town's position is unrelated to its functions as a governmental entity, but rather as a property owner.  The Town accepted title to this property with clear restrictions for the benefit of all of the lot owners in the Leighton Farms Subdivision and has a duty arising from acceptance of such title with restrictions not to violate such restrictions or to knowingly allow others to violate these restrictions.  It would clearly be bad precedent to allow encroachments onto the Town's property, accepted with conservation/greenbelt type restrictions, on a case by case basis.


I feel the Town has a duty holding title to property subject to non-disturbance restrictions, to both the party who made the transfer and to those to be benefited thereby, to take action to prevent violation.  It would create a bad precedent otherwise as to other past or future similar conveyances if the Town were to selectively decide on a case by case basis which violations to prevent and which ones to ignore.

Further, the Town's subdivision ordinance mandates that a developer donate Open Space land or pay an impact fee (See §16-3-1 (g) &( r).  Note a requirement thereof includes "…common open space, recreation areas or other areas to be dedicated by the [subdivision] applicant shall be maintained to ensure that its use and enjoyment is not diminished or destroyed, with the applicant submitting written documents identifying which individual, group or organization shall be responsible for said maintenance…."  If would be inappropriate by the Town to take title to open space parcels to fulfill this requirement on subdivision developers, but then not enforce the Open Space/conservation covenants.

I would strongly recommend that a surveyor determine the extent of the encroachment, that the O'Hearns be advised to remove any encroaching use and to restore the premises as nearly as possible to the original condition.


If I can be of further assistance, please advise.

Best regards,







Monaghan Leahy, LLP







[s]  Thomas G. Leahy









By Thomas G. Leahy, Esq.
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